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lt is a pleasure to take this opportunity to report to 

members on developments in your Chamber in 

2004. For Hong Kong, it was a year of astonishing 

recovery and remarkable milestones. The rapidly 

improving domestic economy, and continued 

strength in foreign trade and tourism flows in 2004 

have laid a solid foundation for continued 

expansion in 2005. 

The rebound resulted in the strongest 

economic growth since 2000 and, 

perhaps even more important, put an 

end to our long struggle with deflation. 

On the domestic side, a large part of 

the improvement arises from stronger 

retail sales related to tourism, 

and to the strengthening 

property market. Further 
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afield, good growth among our major trading 

partners combined to generate 8.1% real growth. 

Foreign trade, the largest part of our economy, 

hit a new high of more than HK$4.1 trillion (US$530 

billion) in 2004 and expanded at the fastest pace in 

four years. In the financial sphere, the stock market 

turned in another strong performance, rising more 

than 13% over 2003, with property markers playing 

an important role. From motor vehicles and 

Internet use to mobile phone 

subscriptions, new records were set 

during the year. 

Perhaps the most important record 

was that of employment, where more 

than 52,000 jobs were created. From 

June through the end of 2004, the 

number of people holding jobs 

Anthony Nightingale, 

Chamber Chairman 
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in Hong Kong reached a new record high in six of 

the seven reporting periods. On the reverse side, the 

combined decline in the number of unemployed and 

under-employed was the largest since 1987. 

The tourism sector deserves special mention, 

both for its own achievements and as a job creator. 

In 2004, Hong Kong hosted more than 21 million 

visitors, a better-than 46% increase. Of this total, 

over 12 mill ion came from the Mainland, with 30% of 

that total coming on the Individual Visit Scheme 

provided for in CEPA. Tourism spending 

contributed to the largest increase in retail sales in a 

decade. While it is tempting to attribute such rapid 
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growth to the very low base we experienced in 

2003, the two-year increase in visitor arrivals, a rise 

of more than 5 million travellers between 2002 and 

2004, was the largest on record. 

The remarkable resilience Hong Kong has 

shown in recent years is among the main reasons 

that major think tanks around the world 

consistently rank our SAR as among the most 

competitive and best managed economies on 

earth. According to the Chamber's annual Business 

Prospects Survey conducted in the autumn of 
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2004, members were becoming more upbeat about 

the local economy in the next two years. Across 

the board. expectations were sharply improved 

over 2003, and satisfaction with most business and 

policy indicators rose. This confirms that in the 

Asian half of the world. Hong Kong's offering of 

international standard business and financial 

services. honest and competent institutions. 

unbeatable location and excellent infrastructure are 

second to none. 

In this context, your Chamber continues to work 

to ensure our economic position remains 

unassailable. Improving the flow of goods and 

people between the SAR and other parts of the 
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Pearl R1ver Delta (PRO) is high on the list of 

Chamber priorities. We are strong supporters of the 

Pan-Pearl River Delta initiative, and participated in 
the first Pan-PRO Regional Seminar; and our own 

3rd Annual Pearl River Delta Conference-held in 

2004 for the first time inside the Pearl River Delta in 

Zhongshan - has become an important addition to 

the annual calendar for those serious about 

business in the region. That conference drew 

almost 200 attendees from the Mainland and 200 

from our membership. and discussed specific issues 

that affect how we do business in the PRO. 
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Implementing CEPA, the landmark free-trade 

and investment deregulation agreement which your 

Chamber is proud to have initiated five years ago, 

was a strong theme in Chamber activities 

throughout 2004. To promote better understanding 

and utilization of the benefits of CEPA, your 

Chamber organized educational workshops and 

experience sharing seminars. In addition to our on­

going implementation monitoring, we also submitted 

recommendations to Government for further 

enhancements to be included in the second and 

third phases of the agreement. Large-scale CEPA 

promotion events were also jointly organized by the 
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Chamber with other Hong Kong and Mainland 

business associations in the SAR and major 

Mainland cities. We also intensively lobbied 

Mainland governments - at central and local levels -

on facilitating Hong Kong businesses trying to use 

CEPA, because many businesses, especially smaller 

ones, continue to encounter obstacles inside China. 

In anticipation of policy items likely to arise in the 

near future, an Expert Group on Competition Policy 

was formed under the Hong Kong Coalition of 

Service Industries (HKCSI), the Chamber's policy 

think tank on services . The group is examining 

various aspects of competition policy, including the 

case for and against a competition law, as well as 

alternatives forms of competition policy. 
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The HKCSI was also active during the year in 

multilateral negotiations related to the next round 

of World Trade Organization talks, to be held in 

Hong Kong in December 2005. One of the major 

undertakings was helping the Global Services 

Network (GSN) lobby for the re-launch of the 

WTO's Doha Round. 

At the same time, we are continuing to work 

toward ensuring that Hong Kong itself retains its many 

attractions, both as a business environment and as 

our home. The Chamber's action on intellectual 

property rights protection, anti-racial discrimination 

legislation, education initiatives, environmental 

concerns-air pollution being a major focus of the 
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Chamber - and a host of other issues are aimed at 

securing a future characterized by stability, prosperity 

and opportunity. We also presented our submission to 

the Government for the 2004/2005 budget. That 

included a plea to have the estate duty eliminated in 

order to benefit our financial services sector and 

continued urging for the Government to cut 

expenditures and broaden the tax base, even though 

there were signs of diminishing deficit. 

Finally, 2004 was a year with much political noise 

in Hong Kong. Since politics in Hong Kong very 

much affects the business environment more and 

more. your Chamber also stepped into the 

discussion. But we did so deliberately in a measured 
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and constructive manner. We emphasized the need 

to "pave the road" and build Institutions, rather than 

focusing immediately on a date or a desired outcome. 

Our approach was appreciated by the commun1ty. 

which was torn by extreme statements, by the 

HKSAR Government, which was seeking to move the 

whole process forward in a gradual manner, and by 

the Central Government. who was concerned that 

reasoned voices were not having enough influence 

here. On this important issue, we w1ll cont1nue to put 

forth our views, as our members now understand that 

political development is closely connected to good 

governance, and that is closely connected to a good 

business environment and economic positioning. 
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Concluding remarks 

2004 was a good year for Hong Kong and for 

the Chamber itself. The convinc1ng recovery and 

strong growth in a wide spectrum of sectors bodes 

well for the near-term future. Although challenges 

remain ahead of us, I feel confident as I conclude 

my term as your chairman that the leadership of the 

Chamber IS in good hands. 

In closing. I would like to extend my personal 

thanks to Deputy Chairman Dav1d Eldon. and to our 

three Vice Chairmen Or Lily Chiang, Anthony Wu 

and KK Yeung. Our Legislative Council 

Representative in the Commercial (F1rst) functional 

constituency, After James Tien served us so ably for 
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the past few years, Jeffrey Lam has ably stepped up 

late in the year to continue working in LegCo on 

behalf of the Chamber, its members, and the entire 

business community . I would also like to thank the 

many members of our Chamber committees, and 

particularly the chairmen and vice chairmen of those 

committees. Through their deeply appreciated hard 

work, they provide the substance, the experience, 

and the input that the Chamber needs. 

Finally, I would like to express my thanks and 

gratitude to the Chamber CEO Dr Eden Woon. and 

his staff for their contribution during the year. The 

financial results, which you can see elsewhere in this 

Report, were the best in recent memory, even with 
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greatly enhanced services to all our members. They 

have also contributed greatly - through good ideas 

and hard work - to make the Chamber's voice in our 

community a very prominent one. To you, our 

members, I would like to thank you for participating in 

our Chamber events and to extend an open invitation 

to provide to the Chamber secretariat your thoughts. 

I would also like to wish you every success in your 

business and to Hong Kong overall in the years ahead. 

Anthony Nightingale, 
Chairman 
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The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce 

mirrored Hong Kong in 2004. We did just as well as 

Hong Kong did, with our services plentiful and our 

financial results excellent. And just l ike Hong Kong, 

we were preoccupied with a few issues that really 

affected the future of Hong Kong. 

First, for the better part of six months, just as 

Hong Kong was, the Chamber was deeply involved 

with the issue of constitutional development for 

Hong Kong. As a business association, traditionally 

we are reluctant to wade into politics. But frankly, the 

govemance of Hong Kong is so crucial to getting the 

business policies right, and society is so politicized 

today, that sitting on the sidelines hurts our own 

1nterests. In addition, the extreme views being bandied 

about in the press on both sides harmed Hong Kong 's 

reputation and divided our society - neither are good 

for Hong Kong as an attraction for investors. 

This is why the Chamber deliberated long and 

hard and came up with a constructive, moderate 

position on the important issue of constitution reform. 
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While others were "name-calling" and either wanting 

democracy instantly or never, the Chamber put forth 

a view which impressed the SAR Government -

Donald Tsang himself called us in for a couple of 

meetings - the Central Government - we had several 

meetings with the Hong Kong Macao Affairs Office­

and the Central Liaison Office, and all sides of the 

political spectrum in the community. The media had 

substantial reporting on our view, which was based on 

an "institution-building" approach. All this not only was 

very useful for the process, but gave a pos1tive view of 

the Chamber and business community to the public. 

Dr Eden Woon 

Chamber CEO 
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What we advocated was the gradual nurturing of 

political parties, the support of policy think tanks, 

the encouraging of political participation, the 

broadening of the tax base, and civic education on 

"one country two systems" and politics in general. 

We said that a suitable date for Hong Kong to have 

a world-class political system to match its world· 

class economy will come when this institution 

building makes good progress. You can find our 

views in our submissions to the Government, all of 

which are online on our Website. I believe that you 

will agree that the Chamber has contributed very 

sensibly to the discussion on this vital issue. 

But the Chamber did not forget about our core 

business of helping members do business this year. As 

you can imagine, as the first proponents of CEPA five 
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years ago, we want to make sure that its implementation 

goes well so that the agreement reaches its full potential. 

We monitored this implementation very closely, through 

constant dialogue with the SAR Government, with the 

Central Government, and with provinces, and cities, 

helping members get through the bureaucratic maze that 

is the China business environment, so that they can utilize 

CEPA fully. Specifically, our China Economist helped 

many members with how they can use CEPA, and helped 

solve their problems inside China using CEPA. 

We also wanted to make sure that this "living" 

agreement is replenished continuously. This is why we 

collected input from members and made two major 

submissions to the Government on what we would like 

to see in the next phases of CEPA. As a result, CEPA 

today has a very good content that reflects to a large 
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extent our members' wishes, and there appears 

now to be a practice by the Mainland to use CEPA 

to give Hong Kong an "experimental role" to test out 

new market opening policies. This is good for 

Hong Kong, since it keeps us one or two steps 

ahead of the rest of the world. And this is good for 

China, since it helps China work out the problems 

associated with opening-up pol icies. 

The Pearl River Delta integration, the Pan-PRO 

concept, the Zhuhai-Macau-Hong Kong bridge, the 

PRO Conference that we eo-sponsor with the South 

China Morning Post - in 2004 it was in Zhongshan -

all had Chamber participation during the year. 

Hong Kong's future is as the service hub of the PRO 

and of the Pan-PRO, so the Chamber wants to make 

sure any integration is done right and done 
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expeditiously, while identifying the problems in this 

process. At the same time, our connection into the 

whole of China gets stronger every day, with governors, 

mayors and ministers all paying increasing attention to 

what the Chamber has to say and what our members 

have to say. This creates a very useful tool for our 

members interested in developing the China market. 

Back to Hong Kong, we were increasingly agitated 

with the deteriorating environment, and we were a 

leading voice in calling for solving the air pollution 

problem - this was a major emphasis in our Policy 

Address submission in the autumn of 2004. We worked 

with our diverse membership on crafting a submission 

on the anti-racial discrimination bill, since we believe that 

there should be such a bill - but with careful wording so 

that it will not be onerous for the SMEs. But whether it is 
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in these policy issues. or in our many, many programs, 

or in our daily consultation with members, we provide a 

helping hand to members as they busy themselves with 

their business. 

2004 was a year which saw us traveling to countries 

ranging from Chile to the United States. from Japan to 

Indonesia, and to numerous cities and provinces inside 

China. The Japan trip was organized in conjunction with 

the HKSAR office in Tokyo and included Kagoshima, 

Fukuoka, Osaka, and Tokyo. Our Chile stop was the 

end of a 12-day visit the Chamber took to Brazil, 

Argentina and Chile at the time of President Hu Jintao's 

own visit to those countries. While in Chile, the Pacific 

Basin Economic Council granted Hong Kong the right to 

host the next International General Meeting in June, 

2005, and that work is expected to consume our 
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attention in the first half of 2005. Our China tnps were 

numerous, with a highlight being the opportunity to 

eo-host wrth the China Entrepreneurs Forum a 

conference in Shenzhen with top Chinese private 

entrepreneurs in late August. All in all, along with the 

200 or so delegations we host per year, these trips 

gave members the chance to see first -hand the local 

business environment and opportunities. 

Our Business Summit at the end of the year once 

again showed clearly that the Hong Kong General 

Chamber of Commerce is an image of Hong Kong. 

That is, we are known as an international chamber. and 

Hong Kong is known as an international city. So our 

Business Summit's theme in 2004 was: "Continuing 

the Global Outlook,· reminding all of us that while our 

attention is focused northward on China for business 
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opportunities, let us not forget our international 

character, which is what makes Hong Kong unique 

and valuable to China and to the world. With China 

rapidly developing and opening up, along with its 

"going out" policy, the role of Hong Kong as an 

international platform, and the role of the Hong Kong 

General Chamber of Commerce as an international 

chamber, are vital in linking China with the rest of the 

world. The Chamber is proud to have participated in 

developing this economic positioning for Hong Kong. 

This work was in full swing in 2004, and will continue 

for some time to come. 

But, the bottom line is that the Chamber cannot 

do any of the above without you, our members. 

Your financial support and your company's support 

of our activities, either through committees or 

participation in our events or writing in with your 
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views, make it possible for us to represent you and 

be true to our motto of being the vo1ce of business in  

Hong Kong. For that, we thank you sincerely. 

A final note: As we look back on 2004, we must 

remember the devastating tsunami tragedy that hit 

our region on December 26. No amount of 

assistance can soothe the loss of human lives, but in 

order to help with rescue and reconstruction, the 

Chamber swung into action almost immediately and 

donated 1 million dollars for the tsunami relief on 

behalf of all our members on December 29. As we 

look forward to another good year, we need to 

remember this sad end to a very good 2004. 

Eden Y Woon 

CEO 
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,•, :1::usand and four proved to be a very good 

• H:r.g Kong, statistically and emotiona lly. 

t :· � ..!e:astating 1mpact of SARS in 2003, 

"-·�J felt a great sense of relief that the disease 

: ·-:::�m in the spring of 2004. and that the 

• , f.nally began to Improve after seven years of 

·;. Curing the year. the International Business 

:::ro•.e to further promote Hong Kong as the 

· a: _·;at bridge connecting Mainland China with 

:.-::�at.onal business world. it also continued 

.. 1:·ernbers up to date on the latest 

: :nents of the Mainland I Hong Kong C loser 

• · Partnership Arrangement (CEPA), and 

t ·��·'nts in the Pearl R1ver Delta as well as the 

··.11 River Delta region. 

CEPA: The implementation of CEPA in 2004 

i :1 new environment for enhancing 

·: : integration between the Mainland and 

· :l�J- As CEPA came into effect. the Division 

,.: • : �ducational workshops, luncheon talks, 

: ··nence sharing seminars to inform members 
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about CEPA and how they can benefit from the 

arrangement. At the same time. the DIVISion 

monitored the implementation progress and 

subm1tted further suggestions to the government for 

possible inclusion in CEPA 11 and Ill .  

I n  early 2004, the Chamber organized a senes of 

"how to . . .  " workshops to explain application 

procedures for CEPA COs, Hong Kong Service 

Supplier Certifica tes, and Zero Tariff tor the next 

phase of CEPA. Large CEPA promotions were 

jo1ntly organized by the Chamber and other 

Hong Kong and Mainland business associations in 

Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou. A Trade in 

Service seminar was also organized in Hong Kong. 

During the year, Chamber execut ives and 

committee members met with incoming Mainland 

officials from various organizations to exchange 

ideas on CEPA. The ChambBr also made two CEPA 

Eva Chow 

Director, 

In ternational Busmess 
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submissions to the Hong Kong SAR Government 

outlining the business sectors' wishes on what they 

would like to be included in the next phase of CEPA. 

The submissions also brought to the authorities' 

attention problems that members had encountered, 

such as local protectionism, complicated application 

procedures, different interpretations by different 

departments, etc. 

PRO: As in previous year, events involving the 

Pearl River Delta were one of the major focuses of 

the Division's China activities. it organized the Third 
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Pearl River Delta Conference, titled "Evolution, 

Enhancement and Expansion - The Delta within the 

Pan-PRO," in November in Zhongshan, China, which 

attracted over 300 attendees. 

Other activities included a Guangdong, Hong Kong 

and Macau Chambers' Networking Dinner, jointly 

organized by 14 business associations in the region, to 

enhance connections among the business community. 

To explore the potential of the Pan-PRO region 

- made up of nine provinces in southern China and 

the Special Administrative Regions of Hong Kong 
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the Chamber participated in 
•.'3:;au- . . . 

PRO Business Assoc1at1on Jomt 
::·.::1 Pan-

-. h Id in Guangzhou in June, and 
'. 1. e . 

� 

ement of cooperation w1th the 
: 3n Agre 

·6 business associations in the region .  

. . . also organized various China-related 
····�DIVISIOn 

_ • kshops roundtable discussions and 
'"1·:;,, ,,.tor , 

. 2004 to provide members with expert 
r;s1n 

··s on topical business issues. 
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Business networking & opportunities 

In 2004, the Division organised eight outgo1ng 

missions to expand members' outreach to global 

markets. Missions were organised to: Shanghai; 

Indonesia; Beijing; Macau and Zhuhai; Japan; Xiamen; 

South America (Miami, Sao Paulo, Rio de Janeiro, 

Buenos Aires and Santiago); and Jiangsu Province. 

The year under review also saw dozens of 

important visitors and delegations coming from all 

over the world to the Chamber, including two 

heads of state, the President of 

the Czech Republic Vaclav Klaus and 

the Prime Minister of Pakistan Mir 

Zafarullah Khan Jamali . 
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An important role of the Division is to build up 

business relations for members with local and 

overseas officials as well as business organizations. 

To th1s end, the Division organised cocktail 

receptions in honour of Consuls General from 

countries in Europe and the Americas, and a 

breakfast meeting with the two new Deputy 

Directors of the Liaison Office of the Central 

Government of the PRC in the HKSAR, Peng 

Oinghua and Li Guikang. The Chamber also signed 

1 3  Memorandums of Understanding with 

organizations around the world in 2004. 
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Members continued to make good use of the 

Chamber's business inquiries and business 

match1ng serv1ces, and the Division organized 

dozens of business matching meetings for members 

with visiting overseas delegations. 

The Hong Kong-Main land Joint Business 

Liaison Committee 

The Hong Kong-Ma1nland Joint Business Liaison 

Committee (JBLC) Annual General Meeting took 

place on April 22 in Hong Kong . At the meet1ng, it 

was suggested that JBLC should beef up its role to 

focus on assisting the implementation of CEPA 
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Pacific Basin Economic Counci l (PBEC) 

PBEC relocated i ts international headquarters 

from Honolulu to Hong Kong in early 2004 as part 

of the organization ' s efforts to improve 

communication, services and influence for its 

members. Yang Wenchang , Commissioner of the 

Min istry of Foreign Affairs of the People's Republic 

of China in the HKSAR, attended the opening 

cocktail reception in March offic iated by David 

Eldon, then Chairman of PBEC Hong Kong, and Art 

Kobler, then President of PBEC . 
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In June, PBEC conducted its 37th International 

General Meeting in Beijing under the theme "Driving 

Change: A New Role for Bus1ness in the Asia­

Pacific." At the IGM,  David Eldon, Chairman of 

HSBC, was elected PBEC International Chairman. 

The PBEC board also named Hong Kong as the 

host of the 38th IGM on June 1 1 -1 4, 2005. 
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overview of business policy issues 

In 2004, the Business Policy Division continued 

to advocate policies in support of industry and 

technology, environment, SMEs and the serv1ce 

sectors. The Division also broadened its range of 

business policy activities, both within the Division's 

purview and in support of other Chamber functions. 

some of these policy issues include: 

Constitutional Development: The Division played 

a supporting role in the formulation of the 

Chamber's input on constitutional development, by 

providing the secretariat to the Chamber Working 

Group on Constitutional Development. Accordingly, 

the Chamber formulated a substantial paper in 

August in response to the government consultation. 

Competition: I n  February 2004, an Expert Group 

on Competition Policy was formed under the Hong 

Kong Coalition of Service Industries (HKCSI), the 

Chamber's policy think-tank on services. The group 

held several meetings during the year on various 

aspects of competition policy, including the case for 

and against a competition law, as well as alternative 

forms of competition policy. 

IiBiiESl:��m�.n� 
1f 2004 '¥ · IimiE)(�iH�tiHft11§�� fl}JI 

AntH'+� · �1* · t:p tJ,�:CdtbUIH���� ({;J 
�••• 0 ��-q:: � • • (t;) Iima•���� 
7L H:: · )]E��thh1btl$:ffftft!J,)i!i� o * '¥ ({;) a •  
'$�'EJ_};5 : 

.®:!M� m : 8H'I\ :jl'g{fl$:�aii51Jg �I {'f=tJ' 

�w�� · m M � n• � •�•� • o /.js:�� 
�• a � ¥��a• � m @ • a ft ({;J a � g �  

fll* : �im*({;J§IH*���OOJ-=i1l'��� 
!U1�il9POO��-·��UN\!l.� 2004 '¥ 2 � PX;  
..:: ' 'NEl* '¥ FtU tf §? l� · 8.tM�a-�lffl §?1:J 
��� · ���M� &fld*$({;)�· · � & 
lifl!J.JI�it(t;)Jm*if.l(• o 

Intellectual Property: The Division continued to 

monitor the debate over the Copyright Ordinance, 

on issues such as end-user liability, definition of 

infringing acts, etc. To promote respect for 

intellectual property, the Chamber joined the 

Intellectual Property Department to re-launch the 

"No Fakes Campaign' among retailers. 

Environment Committee 

The Chamber was a "partner organization" of the 

public engagement process launched by the 

government's Council for Sustainable Development. 

A number of "sustainability" events were organized by 

the Chamber on electronic road pricing, sustainable 

construction, waste management and incinerators, 

urban renewal, and renewable energy. 

Dr W K Chan 
Senior Director, 
Business Policy 
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The Chamber also took the lead to voice concern 

over the worsening air quality and organized a 

seminar and luncheon talk on air pollution. lt 

continued to provide the secretariat for the Business 

Coalition for the Environment and jointly organized a 

series of events, including, among other things, the 

"Designing Hong Kong Harbour District" project. The 

Chamber also continued to be an organizer of the 

Eco-Business Award. 
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Industry and Technology Committee 

Besides regular meetings, the committee 

stepped up its programme of industry and 

environmental visits, and organized tours to: Island 

West Refuse Transfer Station; Environmental 

Protection Department; HK Science and Technology 

Park; Shenzhen Science Park; Calbee Four Seas 

factory; and Freescale (formerly Motorola) plant, 

among others. 
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SME Committee 

The SME Committee sought to widen its 

networks through a mix of regular and new activities 

during the year under review. which included the 

annual Spring Dinner, SME Night, participation in the 

APEC SME Service Alliance tn Ningpo, and 

showcasing the Chamber's SME work at the World 

SME Expo organized by the HKTDC in November. 
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Main land China 

Besides helping to receive Mainland delegations 

and representing the Chamber in relevant service­

industry events in the Matnland, such as the China 

Chainstore Conference, the Division continued to 

play a supporting role in the Chamber's work on 

CEPA and the Pearl River Delta. 

CEPA 

The Division contributed to the compilation of 

the Chamber's wish list on CEPA 1 1 ,  submitted in 

July 2004, and CEPA I ll in December 2004. 
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1---� 

Through the HKCSI, the Chamber took part in 

the "CEPA High Level Conference on Professional 

Services" held in Beijing on February 17, 2004. The 

conference was the first CEPA event between the 

HKSAR and Central governments which involved the 

Hong Kong private sector. 

Pearl River Delta 

The Chamber, the Hong Kong Federation for 

Youth Groups and the Standard Chartered Bank 
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joined forces again to launch the 2004 round of the 

"Pearl for Youth" project to encourage young people 

to develop careers in the Mainland. 

The project started with the Labour 

Department's "career expo," eo-organized by the 

Chamber, followed by a 1 DO-delegate youth mission 

to the Pearl River Delta on June 28-30. A study on 

youth career prospects in the Mainland and a 

booklet on the Yangtze River Delta were also 

produced as part of the project. 
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The Division provided staff support to Chamber 

Chairman Anthony Nightingale, in relation to the 

Greater PRO Council's Joint Investment and Trade 

Promotion Subgroup, which Mr Nightingale charrs. 

During the year the subgroup formulated a work 

plan with recommendations on trade and investment 

promotion, to be taken up jointly with the 

subgroup's Guangdong counterparts. 
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Service Industries 

WTO and services trade negotiations: The 

HKCSI continued to be active in multilateral 

negotiations, and was instrumental in helping the 

Global Services Network (GSN) lobby for the re­

launch of the WTO's Doha Round. In March 2004 the 

HKCSI eo-organized a delegation to Geneva with the 

GSN, comprising 43 participants from 1 2  economies. 
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Through various letters and submissions (some 

of which were drafted by the HKCSI), the GSN 

called for progress in the trade in services 

negotiations under the Doha Round of WTO 

negotiations. The GSN effort paid off as the Doha 

Round was re-launched on July 31 by the WTO 

General Council. 

The HKCSI spearheaded a joint letter "Putting 

GATS back on track", submitted to the APEC 

Business Advisory Council in August. With 

endorsement by ABAC, the paper was submitted to 

the APEC summit in November. 

Brainstorming 'Penta Forum': The HKCSI-initiated 

"Servicing Economy" Penta Forum was held on 

February 9. More than 1 00 academics, business 

people, officials , legislators and media editors took 

part in the morning session to discuss population 

policy, the future of CEPA, culture and entertainment, 

and export of healthcare services. The Financial 

Secretary, Henry Tang, presided over an evening 

forum at Government House. 

In November the HKCSI proposed to the 

Financial Secretary and the Head of the CPU that the 

Penta Forum be strengthened to become a key 

element of the development of think-tank institutions. 

I 
I IJif!il•m:mv:r=s z I SME NIGHT The HKSCI-initiated "Servicing 

Economy Penta Forum attracted 

over 100 academics, business 

people, officials and legislators. 
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Restructuring of committees 

Following a rationalization of Chamber 

committees, the HKCSI Real Estate Services 

Committee was merged into the Chamber Real 

Estate/Infrastructure Committee, under the 

Economic and Legal Affairs Division. 

The HKCSI Information Services Committee and 

the e-Committee were restructured to become the 

new Digital, Information and Telecommunications 

Committee, which is now served by the Operations 

Division with the Business Policy Division providing 

policy support . 

In October 2004, two "exploratory meetings" 

were held on healthcare services and creative 

industries. Participants agreed to form a working 

group to prepare for the formation of a committee in 

the respective areas under the HKCSI. 

Business facilitation 

Chamber Chairman Anthony Nightingale heads a 

subgroup on business facilitation under the Economic 

and Employment Council chaired by the Financial 

Secretary. In support of the subgroup's work, the 

Division arranged meetings between the 

government 's Business Facilitation Unit and Chamber 

members in the retail, restaurant and entertainment 

sectors, to discuss simplification of government 

regulations and procedures affecting these sectors. 
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The ELA, in close consultation with key Chamber 

committees and the General Committee, drafts 

many of the Chambers submissions to government. 

Among the annual entries are the Letter to the Chief 

Executive prior to his annual Policy Address and the 

Budget Submission to the Financial Secretary. Other 

topics covered in 2004 included the estate duty 

review, copyright law amendments, SFC regulations, 

corporate governance and the anti-racial 

discrimination legislation. 

In cooperation with the Employers' Federation of 

Hong Kong, the ELA Division drafts the Chamber's 

annual advice on employee compensation. In past 

years, this often took the form of a percent 

increase or pay freeze recommendation. 

David O'Rear 

Chief Economist, 

Economic and Legal Affairs 
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Recently, however, the view has shifted firmly in 

favor of pay for performance, merit bonuses and 

special one-off bonuses for particularly strong 

performers. 

The Economic and Legislative Affairs Division 

manages five key committees: Economic Policy, 

Legal, Taxation, Real Estate & Infrastructure, and 

Shipping & Transport . Members are proactive in 

identifying and raising subjects under their 

committee briefs, and often work in conjunction with 

other business associations or organizations to bring 

greater expertise to bear on issues. 
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Economic Pol icy Committee 

The committee reviews and recommends broad 

policy ideas related to Hong Kong's overall 

competitiveness. In addrtion to overseeing the 

drafting of the Chamber's annual recommendations 

for the Chief Executive's Policy Address, the 

committee also was briefed on healthcare financing 

reform, trends in government spending and 

progress on anti-racial discrimination legislation. 

Legal Committee 

The Legal Committee analyzes and reviews 

proposed legislative and regulatory changes 

affecting business and the SAR in general . Among 
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the topics raised during the year were codes for 

corporate governance, proposals to enhance stock 

market listing regulations, anti-racial discrimination 

legislation and recommendations for changes to the 

election of the Chief Executive in 2007 and the 

Legislative Council in 2008. 

Taxation Comm ittee 

This committee drafts the detailed 

recommendations the Chamber submits to the 

Financial Secretary for consideration in his annual 

Budget Speech, including issues such as group tax 

relief, elimination of estate duty and the pressing 
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need to reduce spending and broaden the tax base. 

In response to complaints, the committee last year 

wrote to the Commissioner of Inland Revenue with 

concerns regarding the overly Department 

aggressive audits conducted by the Inland Revenue 

Department. The committee also regularly receives 

briefings from members seconded to the Joint 

Liaison Committee on Taxation (JLCT). Finally, as 

part of an on-going initiative to educate members 

and the public on major fiscal matters, the 

committee held, in conjunction with the Economic 

Policy Committee, a seminar on key issues related to 

the structure of a Goods and Services Tax (GST). 
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Real Estate and Infrastructure Committee 

The Real Estate and Infrastructure Committee 

examines major projects such as the West 

Kowloon Cultural District (WKCD), and regulatory 

issues facing the industry. One concern raised in  

relation to the controversial WKCD proposals was 

the prospect of politicalization spil l ing over into 

other areas such as the redevelopment of Kai Tak. 

Cultural heritage site protection, building and 

maintenance work, "green" building initiatives, and 

construction industry deregulation figured among 

the committee's themes last year. 
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Shipping and Transport Committee 

The Shipping and Transport Committee 

considers matters relating to the logistics facilities 

development of the SAR. During the year, the Port 

Masterplan 2020, the 1 Oth container terminal and 

passenger cruise ship berthing options were 

discussed and debated. 
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Membership 

Membership retention efforts began bearing fruit 

in 2004 as the membership renewal rate for the year 

reached 87%, the highest rate for the past seven 

years. The successful Member-get-Member 

Campaign and Staff-get-Member Campaign 

continued to run throughout the year, which further 

enlarged the Chamber's membership and reinforced 

HKGCC's position as the largest business 

organization in Hong Kong. 

Fellowship events 

The Division continued to build on past efforts to 

expand fellowship among members and organized 

dozens of functions in 2004. On average, the 

Chamber arranged three social events every month 

for members to attend. The most regular of these 

continued to be Chamber Happy Hour, held on the 

last Thursday of every month, at which two General 

Committee members also attended each get­

together to give members a chance to meet the GC. 

Other fellowship events organized during the 

year under review included golf outings, Chamber 

Dinner Club and cocktail receptions. A new addition 
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to the cho1ce of fellowship programs offered to 

members in 2004 was the start of Chamber 

Members Lunch Chat, wherein no more than 1 0  

members at a time can chat with one of the 

Chamber's senior staff members in an informal 

lunch setting. 

The Women Executives Club continues to be 

popular among female members. WEC organized 

1 5  events in 2004, including luncheon talks by 

prominent businesswomen, cocktails and sem1nars. 

Major programs 

As events featuring prominent government and 

business people continue to be very popular among 

members, the division organized a wide variety of 

large-scale functions in 2004 to meet this demand. 

Stella Poon 

Director, Communications 

and Membership 
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Among these events were: 

• Joint Business Community Post-Policy Address 

luncheon with the HKSAR Chief Executive 

• Joint Business Community Post-Budget 

luncheon with the HKSAR Financial Secretary 

• Luncheon with Steve Forbes, President and 

CEO of Forbes 

• Seminar on "GST: What Business Needs to Know" 

• Luncheon with Or David Pang, Chief Executive 

Officer, Airport Authority Hong Kong 
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• Venture Capital I Private Equity Partnership 

Conference 

• The Wait Disney - HKGCC VIP Cocktail-cum-

Presentation by Robert lger. President & Chief 

Operating Officer, The Wait Disney Company, 

and Jay Rasulo, President of Wait Disney Parks 

and Resorts 

• The Third Pearl River Delta Conference 

• The 1 1 th Annual Hong Kong Business Summit 

A new addition to the choice of 
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Distinguished Speakers Series 

The Distinguished Speakers Series continues to 

be extremely popular and as such the Division 

organized six DSS luncheon talks in 2004 with: 

• Lord Marshal!, Chairman of British Airways 

• Meg Whitman, President and CEO, eBay 

• Donald Tsang, Chief Secretary for Administration 

• Gary Locke, Governor of the State of Washington 

• Lee Raymond, Chairman and CEO, Exxon Mobil 

Corporation 

• Sun Zhenyu, China's First Ambassador to the WTO 
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Conversation with a General Committee 

Member Series 

Following on from the series, which the Division 

launched in March 2003, four General Committee 

members spoke with members in a closed-door, 

free flowing exchange of ideas in 2004. They were: 

• Jack So, Deputy Chairman and Group Managing 

Director, PCCW Ltd 

• Or Lily Chiang, HKGCC Vice-Chairman, 

Chairman of Eco-Tek Holdings Limited 

• The Honourable Jeffrey Lam, HKGCC's Legco 

Representative 

• Andrew Brandler, Group Managing Director and 

CEO, CLP Holdings Limited 
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Town Hall Forum Series 

Another very successful series also concluded 

in 2004, with: 

• The Honourable Professor Lau Siu-kai, Head, 

Central Policy Unit, HKSAR Government 

• The Honourable Sarah Liao, Secretary for the 

Environment, Transport and Works, HKSAR 

Government 

• Lee Ming-kwai, Commissioner of Police, HKSAR 

Government 
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Other programs 

To help promote the Chamber and our work 

among the wider community in Hong Kong, the 

Division initiated the Hong Kong Business 

Leadership Series - a weekly television series 

broadcast on Cable TV. Each week, Cable TV News 

Channel One featured exclusively one HKGCC 

General Committee member. A total of nine GC 

members were featured in the series over nine 

weeks wrth the first episode focusing on Chamber 

Chairman Anthony Nightingale. 
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Good results 

The year under review was a busy year for the 

division. The Chamber processed and issued 685,931 

trade documents in 2004, which included 1 ,790 

CEPA certificates of origin (CO), 225,014 certificates 

of origin, 451 ,496 import and export trade 

declarations (TDEC), 5,382 restrained textile 

licences (RTEL) and 2,249 production notifications 

(PN). The total number of documents processed 

dropped 3% compared with 706,21 3  processed in 

2003. The reduction was mainly due to a decline in 

demand for TDEC services, as more traders • 

switched to lodging their applications electronically. 

The Chamber's smart card payment system has 

been well received as a substitute for cumbersome 

cash payment. By the end of the year, over 880 

smart cards had been issued. Over 30% of all CO 

transactions were conducted through the smart 

card payment system. The processing time for 

COs, including the time required for correcting CO 

applications, has also been further reduced and the 
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Chamber now provides an expeditious service in  all 

its certification branch offices strategically located in 

Hong Kong, Kowloon and the New Territories. 

Certification Division staff members worked hard to 

provide a superior service to all members and non­

members throughout 2004. 

Certification co-ordination 

Certification policy and issues are mainly dealt 

with by the Certification Co-ordination Committee on 

which the Chamber is represented by W S Chan, 

Senior Director, Certification Division. The 

committee met once during the year to discuss 

implementation arrangements for the issue of 

CEPA certificates of origin. 

W S Chan 

Senior Director, 

Certification 
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I nvestigation 

To uphold the integrity of the certification 

system, over 3,432 consignment checks on 

certificate applications were made in 2004. As a 

result, 26 applications were refused and 1 86 

certificates of origin were referred to the Trade 

Investigation Bureau of the Customs and Excise 

Department for further investigation and prosecution. 

ATA Carnet 

The Chamber is the sole body in Hong Kong 

authorized to issue ATA carnets. These are 
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international customs documents which permit trade 

samples, exhibition goods and professional 

equipment to be taken across national frontiers 

without payment of duty. In 2004, a total of 4,033 

carnets were issued, an increase of 1 6% over the 

figure for 2003. These covered goods totalling 

HK$5, 107 million. During the year, 504 disputes 

arising out of the functioning of the carnet system 

were settled. Among these disputes, 25 cases 

resulted in payment of customs duties of 

approximately HK$371 ,000. 
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I ncoming trade missions 

In 2004, the division received two delegations 

organized by the Guangzhou Customs and the She 

Kou Inspection Quarantine Bureau of the People's 

Republic of China. The officials wanted to learn more 

about EDI certification and CEPA certificates of origin. 

The Certification Division organized seven 

workshops in 2004 to inform members on CEPA CO 

application and issuing procedures and rules of 

origin, as well as new model forms and revised 

application procedures for ATA Carnet services. 

Over 550 traders attended these workshops, many 

of whom found them very useful. 
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Informatio n  technology 

The Chamber's Website continues to grow in 

strength, both in terms of its popularity and depth 

of information and services offered on the site. The 

number of page views for the site in 2004 

increasing by almost 50% over 2003's total to 

reach just under 1 .5 million per month. Viewers 

came from 1 34 countries/economies, the top-five 

being Hong Kong (48%), USA (25%). PRC (6%), 

Taiwan (4%) and France (2%). 

As the Chamber Web site is becoming 

increasingly well-known internationally, more 

members are taking advantage of this development 

to promote their products and services via the 

Chamber Website. This is reflected both in the surge 

in advertising income generated from the site and 

the jump in page views. 

In addition to providing timely and useful 

business information, the site also serves as a useful 

tool for members. During the year under review, 

members made 2 ,  767 on-line bookings for Chamber 

events. They also made 1 ,032 updates to their 

membership records online, using COMIUS, a 

system developed by the Chamber's in-house IT 
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team to replace the paper updating process, which 

was clumsy, time consuming and prone to errors. 

In the fourth quarter of 2004, the Division began 

a trial run of the Chamber e-Ciub - an online version 

of a personal post office box dedicated exclusively 

for Chamber information which members choose to 

receive. The e-Ciub system is designed for members 

who prefer not to receive Chamber information by 

fax or email. By the end of 2004, over 1 , 200 

member representatives had activated their e-Ciub 

accounts. more than 700 of whom are active users. 

DIT Committee 

In view of the partial overlap in areas of 

concern of the Chamber's e-Committee and the 

Information Services Committee, it was decided in 

June 2004 to merge the two into a new 

committee, called the Digital. Information and 

Telecommunications (DIT) Committee. 

Or Y S Cheung 

Senior Director, 

Operations 
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The DIT Committee gives advice on DIT related 

policy issues as well as promoting IT usage in 

business. Jack So, Deputy Chairman and Group 

Managing Director of PCCW, was invited to be the 

inaugural Chairman and he is supported by four 

Vice Chairmen, two in policy and two in programs. 

Under the auspices of the former e-Committee and 

the DIT Committee, the Division organized 1 7  

roundtables and workshops during the year under 

review. lt also organized three inspection tours for 

members - MTRC's control room at Tsing Yi, the 

Immigration Department's Smart Card Centre at 

Wanchai, and Asia Netcom's cable landing station 

at Tseung Kwan 0. 
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The DIT Committee, after collecting views from 

members, responded to the government's 

consul tation on spamming in November 2004. 

Administration a n d  f inances 
The Chamber's finances continued to perform 

strongly in 2004. The total income increased by 2.8% 

over 2003's figure, while expenses decreased by 0.5%, 

resulting in a surplus from ordinary activities before 

taxation of HK$1 1 .2 million. 

Income from membership dues remained stable 

while overall CO income increased by 2.8%, due to 

improved CO operations combined with a 

decreased in ETAS income. The latter ma1nly due to 

• • · •ma•m� • ••�� • • �  

� · �*� 1 1 � ��fi��---- � � � �  

tl:l @J a o 

frii&&M� 
2004 ��·M�mtM:milt · i�l&A*X 

2oo3 �.ttt- 2.s% . rm � �.1JiJilty o.5% . :i-�� 

1�1f£ft;\f;��?fT1�HJiM��� 1 , 1 20 ��71: o 



the introduction of a new competitor by government 

into the market. Due to the reduction in both profit 

margins and number of events, income from 

Chamber programs dropped HK$0.4 million in 2004. 

However, realized gain on the investment of the 

General Fund was HK$0.9 million for the year, a 

swing of almost HK$2 million over 2003. 

With improvements in both the quality and 

quantity of Chamber services, there was a slight 

increase of 1 .9% in staff costs. On the other hand, 

office expenses were reduced by 8.6%, reflecting a 

tight rein on operational expenses. 
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After an injection of funds into the General Fund 

ceased in 1 998, the Investment Sub-committee 

recommended adding HK$10 million into the fund 

last year. Due to a sound performance, the fund grew 

by 1 0.3% to $75.5 million, as of the end of 2004. 

The Division renovated the Chamber boardroom 

in 2004 and fitted a new boardroom table and a new 

carpet. The Conference Room, where the Chamber 

holds its roundtables and other events, was also 

modified along with an adjoining room to provide 

more comfortable and flexible venues for members. 
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Manpower Corunittee 

During the year under review, the committee 

deliberated on key manpower issues facing Hong 

Kong in the areas of education, immigration, racial 

discrimination, business-school partnerships, and 

civil service reform, among others. it also organized 

roundtable luncheons with prominent speakers, 

including Fanny Law, Permanent Secretary for 

Education and Manpower, to inform members of 

various manpower issues. 

Trai ning 

Training continues to be an important service 

that the Division offers to members to help their staff 

cope with increasingly diversified responsibilities. 

During the year, the Division organized 1 08 courses 

for almost 1 ,000 participants covering HR, general 

administrative and customer service skills, 

management skills, finance, languages and many 

other practical, soft business skills. The Division also 

partnered with various professional bodies and 
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universities to increase the scope and variety of 

training programs offered to businesses, as well as 

organized tailor-made training courses at the 

request of members. 

To encourage more members - especially SMEs 

- to use the Division's training services, the 

Chamber, in cooperation with the Bank of China, set 

up a training fund to offer rebates to members' staff 

enrolling in Chamber training programs. 

Prog rams 

The Division organized 1 5  roundtables and 

seminars during the year. Almost 800 people 

participated in these events, which focused on 

topical issues, such as work visa policies, HR 

strategies, retirement, training, education and 

media relations, among others. 

Emma Ho 
Di rector. 
Human Resources 
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With regard to community programs, the Division Health Award,"  and the business-school partnership 

continued to support the "The Good Citizens Award. "  program "Co-operation Program on Workplace English 

Held twice a year, the award is organized by the Police between HKGCC & AEMSS." 

Public Relations Branch with sponsorship from the 

HKGCC. Since its launch in 1 973, the scheme has Corporate H R  

commended over 3 , 1 00 citizens. The Division also With the economy improving and increased 

supported the "The Hong Kong Occupational Safety & demands on staff, staff turnover during the year was 

m¥ . �5i�FJiWi�!lJJ . .W1f:]jj�j\jij/};:: 0 § 1973 1¥ �  
m¥tJ* · t:.�;¥FiW� 3.1oo .:8 m� o �ffl5�)tr� r ;g  

5i��'ti:�iltmt::*:�J ;ra�FJi15-f1=8'9 ������15-11= 

;tHiliJJ (��tlB!J El:! ;g 5i #.!@. FJi iW � �;-w� 3<: 'P �Q�r� � 
15-mt) 0 

Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce Annual Report 2004 

moderate, and on the whole the workforce remained 

stable and committed to serving members' needs. 

Overall headcount continues to be closely watched 

and as of the end of 2004 stood at 1 27, down from 

129 in 2003. 
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Chamber Services Lim ited 

�r@},���&�� �N i}  � 





Event management 

Chamber Services Limited delivered a diverse 

range of events in 2004 on behalf of various organizers 

from the Hong Kong business community and 

overseas organizations, including conferences, award 

launching ceremonies and seminars. The company's 

reach has expanded to serve organizations not only in 

Hong Kong, but also in Mainland China, the United 

States of America, and Russia. 

The company organized nine major conferences 

in 2004, ranging from the Global Information and 

communication Technology Summit to the 3rd PRD 

conference, al l  of which had local and international 

speakers and attendees. Chamber Services Limited 

also organized for the HKSAR Government the 

Hong Kong Economic Summit in August, which 

attracted more than 800 business leaders and 

government officials. In addition, the company was 

awarded the contract to manage and promote the 

38th Pacific Basin Economic Council International 

General Meeting, which wi l l  take place in Hong Kong 

in June 2005. 

Besides international conferences, the company 

also organized several business seminars for 

government organizations, local businesses, magazines 

as well as multinational firms operating in Hong Kong. 

Chamber Services Limited also worked hard in 2004 to 
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make its services more accessible to Mainland 

organizations, which was met with good results. During 

the year under review, the company organized several 

investment seminars for various city governments in 

the Mainland, including Jianghan in Hubei, 

Shijiazhuang and Hengsui in Hebei, Haian in Jiangsu, 

and Panyu in Guangdong, as well as an investment 

seminar for the Western Movie Group of Xian. 

Trai n ing 

Delivering business-training programs for Mainland 

Chinese enterprises and executives is one of the new 

initiatives that Chamber Services Limited launched in 

2004. During the year under review, the company 

worked with the Bank of China Hong Kong, China 

Everbright Group, China Council for the Promotion of 

International Trade, and China Enterprise Federation. 

Business representation 

The company continues to provide business 

promotion service to the Inte-rnational Business 

Organization of Osaka, Inc. Beside providing regular 

updates on local business issues, Chamber Services 

Limited has extended its service to cover industry 

market research for this client. 

Erica Ng 

General Manager, Chamber Services Limited 
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w)l��lttJJ HONG KONG PROGRESS 

GDP at Current Prices (HK$ Billion) 
- Change (%) 

GDP in Constant 2000 HK$ Billion 
- Change (%) 

GDP Components (% real change) 
- Domestic Demand 
- Private Consumption 
- Gov. Consumption 
- Investment 
- Merchandise Exports 
- Merchandise Imports 
- Services Exports 
- Services Imports 

GDP per capita (HK$) 
- Change (%) 

GDP per capita (US$) 

Inflation (% change) 
- GDP Deflator 
- Composite CPI 
- CPI (A) 
- CPI (B) 
- CPI (C) 

Wages (change %) 
Nominal 
Real 

Agriculture and Fishing 
Manufacturing 
Utilities 
Construction 
Services 

- Wholesale, Retail, etc 
- Transport, Storage, etc 
- Finance, Insurance, etc 
- Community Services 
- Ownership of Premises 
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2004* 2003 
1 , 282.0 1 ,220.0 
+5. 1 %  -2.5% 

1 ,472.0 1 , 361 . 2  
+8. 1 % +3.2% 

+7.5% -3.6% 
+6.7% -0.3% 
+0.5% +1 .9% 
+4.5% +0. 1 %  

+1 5.3% +1 4.2% 
+14 . 1 % t 13. 1 %  
+1 4.9% +5.7% 
+1 0.5% -4.6% 
1 85,918  1 78,227 

+4.3% -3.4% 
23,835 22,850 

2004 2003 
-2.8% -5.5% 
-0.4% -2.6% 
-0.0% -2. 1 %  
-0.3% -3.0% 
-0.4% -3.3% 

- 1 . 1 %  -1 .9% 
-0.6% +0.7% 

2004* 2003 
0 . 1% 0. 1 % 
3.8% 3.9% 
3.0% 3. 1 %  
3.7% 4.3% 

84.9% 84.7% 
28.2% 27.4% 
1 0 .9% 1 0. 1 % 
22.7% 22.7% 

4. 1 %  4.4% 
1 8.5% 1 9.2% 

2002 2001 2000 
1 ,250.6 1 ,270.0 1 ,304.1  

-1 .5% -2.6% +3.5% 
1 ,318 .7 1 ,296.5 1 ,288.3 
+1 .7% +0. 6% +1 0.4% 

-2. 1 %  +1 .2% + 1 1 .7% 
- 1 .2% +2.0% +5.4% 
+2.5% +6.1 % +2.0% 
-4.5% +2.6% +9.8% 
+8.7% -3.3% + 1 7 . 1 %  
+7.9% -1 .9% +1 8.2% 

+ 1 1 .7% +6.2% +1 2.9% 
+3.7% +2.0% +4.2% 

1 84,269 1 88,849 1 95,665 
-2.4% -3.5% +2.6% 

23,625 24,199 25,088 

2002 2001 2000 
-3.2% -3.2% -6.2% 
-3 . 1 % -1 .6% -3.7% 
-3.2% - 1 .7% -2.9% 
-3.1 % -1 .7% -3.9% 
-2 .8% -1 .5% -4.4% 

-1 .0% +0.8% t0.5% 
+2.0% +2.4% +4.2% 

2002 2001 2000 
0 . 1% 0.1 %  0 . 1% 
4.5% 5 . 1 %  5.6% 
3 . 1%  3. 1 % 3.0% 
4.7% 4.8% 5. 0% 

83. 6% 82.7% 81 .7% 
25.7% 25. 1 %  25.2% 
10.3% 9.9% 9.8% 
22.3% 22.4% 22.6% 

4.5% 4.6% 4.4% 
19.8% 20.3% 1 9.6% 



2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 
Mid-year Population 6,842 6,803 6,787 6,725 6,665 

- Percent change +0.6% +0.2% +0.9% +0.9% +0.9% 
- Males (percent share} 48.2% 48.4% 48.6% 48.9% 49.2% 
- Females (percent share} 51 .8% 51 .6% 51 .4% 51 . 1 %  50.8% 

Labour Data (annual averages) 
Labour Force 3,523 3,503 3,475 3,425 3,366 

- Employed 3,279 3,227 3,237 3,256 3,195 
- Unemployed 244 278 256 1 75 1 67 

Unemployment Rate (%} 6.9% 7.8% 6.9% 4.9% 4.9% 
Underemployment Rate (%} 3.3% 3.5% 3.0% 2.4% 2.8% 
Employment 

- Manufacturing 168.8 1 73. 1 1 93.0 21 2.0 232.0 
- Finance, Business Services 433.5 421 .9 429.9 435.6 428.8 
- Wholesale, Retail and Trade, 989.4 965.2 995.3 1 ,01 9.0 1 ,031 .7 

Restaurants and Hotels 
- Construction (manual labour) 65.1 67.6 73.2 80.3 79.6 
- Community Services 415.3 407.3 396.0 373.8 348.6 
- Civil Service 1 6 1 .6 1 67.1 1 7 1 .2 1 77.7 1 84.2 

Tourism Arrivals (million) 21 .81 15.53 16.57 13.73 1 3.1 0 

Stock Exchange Indices (year -end) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 
Hang Seng Index (July 1 964 = 1 00) 1 4,230.14 1 2,575.94 9,321 .29 1 1 ,397.21 1 5,095.53 

- Finance 28,237.74 26,263.59 1 8,231 . 1 6 1 9,497.67 24,041 .66 
- Utilities 30,773.43 24,878.76 21 ,970.53 20,498.86 21 ,704.53 
- Properties 18, 1 77.59 14,778.70 1 1 , 1 03.88 1 5,554.75 1 8,362.44 
- Commerce & Industry 6,076.78 5,271 .72 4,043.95 5,508.82 8 , 151 .69 

Monthly Average Turnover (HK$ billion) 329.0 212 . 1  1 33.2 1 62.5 284.0 
Market Capitalisation (HK$ billion) 6,629.2 5,477.7 3,559.1 3,885.3 4,795.2 
Market Capitalisation (US$ billion) 851 .1 703.3 456.3 497.9 61 4.8 

MONEY AND BANKING 

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 
No. of licensed banks (operating) 1 33 134 133 1 47 1 54 
No. of restricted licensed banks 40 42 46 49 48 
No. of DTCs (operating) 35 39 45 54 61 
Money Supply M1 (HK$ billion) 484.5 413.4 295.7 258.2 243.5 
Money Supply M2 (HK$ billion) 4,1 66.7 3,812.8 3,5 1 8.3 3,550. 1 3,604.6 
Money Supply M3 (HK$ billion) 4, 1 89.5 3,857.4 3,561 .9 3,594. 1 3,647.9 
Total bank deposits (HK$ billion) 3,866.0 3,566.4 3,275.8 3,366.6 3,490.7 
Total loans & advances (HK$ billion) 2, 1 55.6 2,035.2 2,076.3 2, 185.0 2,461 .5 

- Loans for use in Hong Kong (percent share) 83. 1 %  84.0% 83.9% 86.2% 89.7% 
- All other loans (percent share) 16.9% 16.0% 16. 1 % 1 3.8% 10.4% 

Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate (average) 5.02 5.00 5 . 1 1 7.00 9.22 

EXCHANGE RATES 

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 
HK$:US$1 (average) 7.788 7.787 7.799 7.799 7.791 
HK$:c1  (average) 9.683 8.810 7.370 6.993 7.204 
HK$:¥100 (average) 7.205 7 . 1 8 1  7.155 7.149 7.123 
HK$:Rmb (average) 0.942 0.945 0.945 0.943 0.942 

· HKGCC estiamle 
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PUBLIC FINANCES (HK$ billion, FY April -March) 

1 999 - 00 (Actual) 
2000 - 01 (Actual) 
2001 - 02 (Actual) 
2002 - 03 (Actual) 
2003 - 04 (Actual) 
2004 - 05 (Actual) 
2005 - 06 (Budget) 

Operating Revenue 
1 75.2 
1 71 .3 
1 5 1 .9 
166.0 
158.7 
187.1 
192.5 

Operating Expenditure 
1 75.9 

Operating Surplus/Deficit 
-0.7 

MERCHANDISE TRADE (HK$ billion) 

Total Imports (c.i.f.) 
Total Exports (f.o.b.) 

- Domestic Exports (f.o.b.) 
- Re-exports (f.o.b.) 

Total Trade 
Trade Balance 

- as a share of imports 

SERVICES TRADE (HK$ billion) 

Exports of Services 
Imports of Services 
Services Balance 

186.7 
198.7 
201.3 
206.7 
201.2 
208.0 

2004 
2,1 1 4.3 
2,020.5 

126.0 
1 ,894.5 
4, 134.8 

-93.8 
-4.4% 

2004* 
420.0 
228.2 

+ 1 9 1 .7 

2003 
1 ,810.6 
1 ,744.1 

1 21 .8 
1 ,662.3 
3,554.7 

-66.5 
-3.7% 

. 2003 
351.9 
196.1 

+ 155.8 

-15.4 
-47.2 
-35.3 
-48.1 
- 14 . 1  
-15.5 

2002 
1 ,619.4 
1 ,560.5 

130.9 
1 ,429.6 
3,179.9 

-58.9 

-3.6% 

2002 
335.4 
199.7 

+ 135.7 

Fiscal Reserves (year -end) 
444.3 

2001 
1 ,568.2 
1 ,481 .0 

153.5 
1 ,327.5 
3,049.2 

-87.2 

-5.6% 

2001 
307.7 
1 92.5 

+1 15.2 

430.3 
372.5 
31 1 .4 
275.3 
287.3 
276.8 

2000 
1 ,658.0 
1 , 572.7 

1 8 1 .0 
1 ,391 .7 
3,230.7 

-85.3 
-5. 1 %  

2000 
301.8 
1 91 .5 

+ 1 1 0.3 

DOMESTIC MERCHANDISE EXPORTS : MAJOR MARKETS (HK$ billion) 

2004 2003 2002 
The Mainland 38.0 36.8 41 .4 
USA 38.6 39.1 4 1 .9 
UK 8.2 7.8 7.6 
Germany 5.0 4.9 4.3 
Taiwan 4.7 3.7 4.4 
Singapore 3.1 2.2 2 .2 
Japan 2.8 2.8 3.0 

MERCHANDISE RE-EXPORTS : MAJOR MARKETS (HK$ billion) 

2004 2003 
The Mainland 850.6 705.8 
USA 303.0 285. 1 
Japan 104.7 91.2 
UK 57.7 49.6 
Germany 57.9 51 .4  
Taiwan 44.4 38.6 
Singapore 40.4 33.5 

MERCHANDISE I MPORTS : MAJOR MARKETS (HK$ billion) 

The Mainland 
Japan 
Taiwan 
USA 
Singapore 
South Korea 
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2004 2003 
918.3 785.6 
256.1 214.0 
153.8 125.2 
1 1 2.0 98.7 
1 1 1 .0 90.6 
100.5 87.3 

2002 
571 .9 
291.0 

80.7 
46.6 
44.6 
30.2 
29.4 

2002 
7 1 7 . 1  
182.6 
1 1 5.9 

91.5 
75.7 

76.0 

2001 2000 
49.5 54.2 
47.6 54.4 

8.6 10.7 
5.8 9.3 
5.4 6.1 
2.7 4.7 
4 . 1  5 .1  

2001 2000 
496.6 488.8 
282.2 31 1 .0 

83.6 82.1 
46.8 52.4 
45.8 50.6 
30.0 33.7 
26.9 32.0 

2001 2000 
682.0 715.0 
1 76.6 1 99.0 
107.9 124.2 
1 04.9 1 1 2.8 

72.9 75.0 
70.8 80.6 



IM PORTS BY END USE (HK$ billion) 

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 
Foodstuffs 60.1 58.3 59.1 60.4 63.7 
Consumer goods 631 .8 75.8 543.2 538.0 562.2 
Fuels 48.6 35.4 3 1 . 3  30.4 34.0 
Raw Materials & Manufactures 805.2 654.4 558.1 51 1 .4 580.5 
Capital goods 565.4 481 .8 427.7 428.1 417.6 

RE-EXPORTS BY END USE (HKS billion) 

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 
Foodstuffs 12 .4 14.7 1 6.2 17.4 19.7 
Consumer Goods 679.1 617.3 580.4 570.2 609.5 
Fuels 2.7 2.0 1 .7 1 .9 2.5 
Raw Materials & Manufactures 662.3 533.2 448.3 396.0 425.4 
Capital Goods 536.7 453.5 383.0 342.0 334.7 

EXPORTS OF SERVICES (HK$ Billion) 

2004* 2003 2002 2001 2000 
Total 420.0 351 .9 335.4 307.7 302.4 
Transportation 1 33.3 105.6 103.8 93.7 91 .6 
Travel 80.2 60.0 58.9 46.4 44.3 
Merchandising and trade 1 45.4 128.6 1 1 6.0 1 06.4 104.6 
Other Business 6 1 .7 57.6 56.8 6 1 .2 62.6 

IMPORTS OF SERVICES (HK$ Billion) 

2004* 2003 2002 2001 2000 
Total 228.2 196. 1 1 99.7 192.5 1 94.4 
Transportation 60.1 48.8 48.5 50.9 50.2 
Travel 104.0 89.1 96.8 96.1 97.4 
Merchandising and trade 1 9.8 16.8 1 4.7  1 1 .8 12.6 
Other Business 14.4 4 1 .3 39.7 33.7 34.3 

OTHER INDICATORS 

2004' 2003 2002 2001 2000 
Electricity Consumption (Terajoules) 1 52,313 1 49,262 1 44,942 1 39,830 134,928 

- Industrial 15,430 1 4,851 1 6, 1 1 2  16 ,759 1 7,769 
- Commercial 91 ,255 88,834 87,241 84,214 80,347 
- Domestic 34,134 34,365 33,394 32,799 32,234 
- Other (incl. export) 1 1 ,494 1 1  ,21 2 8 ,195 6,058 4,578 

Telecommunications 
- Residential ('000) 2,1 1 6  2, 1 1 8  2,134 2,161 2,210 
- Business ('000) 1 ,690 1 ,691 1 ,764 1 ,736 1 ,734 
- Broadband interne! accounts ('000) 1 ,472 1 ,21 1 989 623 392 
- Mobile phone accounts ('000) 7,349 4,390 4,207 4,256 4,1 1 0  

Motor Vehicle Registrations (No.) 
Total licensed 527,700 524,249 525,551 525,376 51 6,782 

- new registrations 41 ,400 35,229 42,651 57,896 52,446 
Private cars 383,750 382,880 384,864 381 ,757 374,013 

- new registrations 27,600 22,821 30,41 7 34,943 34,630 

• HKGCC estiamte 
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Auditors' report to the members of 
The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce 
("the Chamber") 
(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee) 

We have audited the financial statements on pages 70 to 82 
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles

. 
generally accepted in Hong Kong. 

Respective responsibi lities of the General Committee 
and auditors 
The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the General 
Committee to prepare financial statements which give a true 
and fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a 
true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting 
policies are selected and applied consistently, that judgements 
and estimates are made which are prudent and reasonable and 
that the reasons for any significant departure from applicable 
accounting standards are stated. 

lt is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based 
on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our 
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 
141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other 
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept 
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. 

Basis of opin ion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of 
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test 
basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. l t  also includes an assessment of the 
significant estimates and judgements made by the General 
Committee in the preparation of the financial statements, and 
of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the 
Chamber's and the group's circumstances, consistently applied 
and adequately disclosed. 

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the 
information and explanations which we considered necessary 
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable 
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated 
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the 
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Opmion 
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the Chamber and of the group as at 
31 December 2004 and of the group's surplus and cash flows 
for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in 

accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 

kPMG I 
Signed KPMG 

Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong 

1 8 March 2005 
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���� FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

f*�l&���� Consolidated i ncome and expenditure statement 
i!t� 2004 � 12 fJ 31 f'J.Ji:�ffl for the year ended 31 December 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 
(J;I.jgjfflffF) 

Note 
llfHil: 

!&.A. Income 
�J'( Members' subscriptions 
jiil!Jl' Fees 1 2  
ft).QJ�Jli!.@. Interest and dividends 1 3  
l±H\!R.&!t� Publications and promotion 1 4  
00\il&:A. Commission income 
§\il&:A. Rental income 
lli1!lU�Iffi��tt Surplus on disposal of property 
ti:li! ��)Z�il!:#lff!il-�tt Surplus on disposal of non-trading securities 
UBI.!&� Exchange gain 

i: W  Expenditure 
�.!') Staff 1 5  
'#�� Office 1 6  
jj�.f*� Services 1 7  
iliii.&t!Wi �JEj;{ifffir.tiMl Depreciation and deficit on disposal of fixed assets 1 8  
lli tsJ�:x:�il!#ffi!il-.tiltl Deficit on disposal of non-trading securities 
1t�&IH# Subscriptions and donations 1 9  
iiJt..t\!11 Exchange loss 

:Ut .A.i.lll!Ul.til.iiilll.iti Surplus before impairment loss and taxation 

m ffiliF.t. m · � 3HHUut m Write-back of impairment loss on 
unlisted non-trading investment 

liHUi'lU�PiillHJtiiil 11.� Surplus from ordinary activities before taxation 

Plit:UJ! Income tax 1 0(a) 

?t!!�!l�PiillHJI.lU1� Surplus from ordinary actfvities alter taxation 20 

lJ.tif!.lt'lf-li�i: General fund brought forward 

lll"F!f!.ltfili�i: General fund carried forward 

jij�;f,73�82l1tfJf.l!lt.ll.l5ftif�;!l�fl\J-at71 The notes on pages 73 to 82 form part of these financial statements. 
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2004 
$'000 

1 2,448 
43,175 

3,474 
4,239 

246 
1 ,5'87 

915 

__ 9_1 

--��:!?.� 

(42,334) 
(5.306) 
(2,410) 
(3,782) 

(1 , 1 13) 

(54,g45) 
:.:..:.:..:.::. 

1 1 ,230 

1 1 ,230 

__QQID 
1 1 ,021 

203,033 

21 4,054 

2003 
$'000 

1 2,466 
42,023 

3,062 
4,633 

255 
1 ,951 
4,373 

68,763 

{41 ,525) 
(5,813) 
(2,571) 
{3,977) 
(1,007) 

(306) 

_f1Zl 
_(�?!?_!?) 

13,547 

5,875 

19,422 

_MID 
1 9.224 

183,809 

203,033 
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Consolidated balance sheet 
as at 31 December 2004 (Expressed m Hong Kong dollars) 

Note 
m ra.  

Fixed assets 2(a) 

Unlisted non-trading investments 4 

Non-trading securities managed 5 
by investment manager 

Held-to-maturity debt securities 6 

Staff housing loans 7 

Deferred tax assets 1 1 (b) 

Current assets 
Accounts with investment manager 8 
Debtors and prepayments 
Certificates of deposit 9 
Tax recoverable 1 1 (a) 
Cash at bank and in hand 

Current liabilities 
Creditors and accruals 
Subscriptions received in advance 

General fund 

Investment revaluation reserve 21 

2004 
$'000 

9 1 , 1 30 

5,875 

73,843 

2,791 

3,000 

953 

1 ,705 
3,046 
5,000 

78 
75,452 

_85,28 1 
262,873 

r ·  24.3,10 1 
12 .204 

- . 

_}_���::� 
226,329 

214,054 

1 2,275 

226,32� 

2003 
$'000 

94,128 

5,875 

56,498 

6,000 

991 

2,302 
2,41 0 

1 0,000 
58 

54,861 

69,631 
233,123 

--�-�,��-� 
209,681 

203,033 

� 
209,681 

Approved and authorised for issue by the General Committee on 18 March 2005. 

Anthony Nightingale 

David Eldon 

Eden Woon 

PricewaterhouseCoopers 
(Certified Public Accountants) 

Chairman 

Deputy Chairman 

CEO 

Treasurers 

The notes on pages 73 to 82 form part of these financial statements. 
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Balance sheet 
as at 31 December 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 

Note 

m tt  
Fixed assets 2(b) 
Interest in a subsidiary 3 
Unlisted non-trading investments 4 
Non-trading securities managed 5 

by investment manager 
Held-to-maturity debt securities 6 
Staff housing loans 7 
Deferred tax assets 1 1 (b) 
Current assets 

Accounts with investment manager 8 
Debtors and prepayments 
Certificates of deposit 9 
Tax recoverable 1 1 (a} 
Cash at bank and in hand 

Current liabilities 
Creditors and accruals 
Subscriptions received in advance 

General fund 
Investment revaluation reserve 21 

2004 
$'000 

91 , 1 1 8  
1 ,452 
5,875 

73,843 

2,791 
3,000 

953 

1 ,705 

[ 
2.383 
5,000 

78 
�3,394 
82,560 

261,592 

213,744 
1 2,275 

226,019 

2003 
$'000 

94, 1 1 2  
3, 1 1 1  
5,875 

56,498 

6,000 
991 

2,302 
1 ,969 

1 0,000 
58 

51 ,600 
65,929 

_?_:3_?!�]-� 

202,727 
6,648 

209,375 

Approved and authorised for issue by the General Committee on 1 B March 2005. 
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Anthony Nightingale 

David Eldon 

Eden Woon 

PricewaterhouseCoopers 
(Certified Public Accountants) 

Chairman 

Deputy Chairman 

CEO 

Treasurers 

The notes on pages 73 to 82 form part of these financial statements. 

Consolidated statement of changes in equity 
for the year ended 31 December 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 

Total equity at 1 January 
- As previously reported 
- Prior period adjustment arising from 

change in accounting policy for deferred tax 
Total equity at 1 January (2003: restated) 

Surplus on revaluation 
Investments in non-trading securities 

Net gains not recognised in the 
income and expenditure statement 

Net surplus for the year 

Total equity at 31 December 

Note 2004 
llf� l!t $'000 

209,681 

21 5,627 

5,627 

1 1 ,021 

226,329 

The notes on pages 73 to 82 form part of these financial statements. 
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2003 
$'000 

1 78,998 

___j_QM 
10,519 

_ _ _  

1_�!??.� 

209,681 
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Consolidated cash flow statement 
for the year ended 31 December 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 

2004 
$'000 

Operating activities 
Surplus from ordinary activities before taxation 
Adjustments for: 
- Depreciation on fixed assets 
- Surplus on disposal of fixed assets 
- (Surplus)/ deficit on disposal of non-trading securities 
- Interest and dividends received 
- Write-back of impairment loss on unlisted 

non-trading investment 

1 1 ,230 

3.782 

(915) 
(3,474) 

Operating surplus before changes in working capital 1 0,623 
Decrease in accounts with investment manager 597 
(lncrease)/decrease in debtors and prepayments (636) 
lncrease/(decrease) in creditors and accruals 13,396 
(Decrease)/increase in subscriptions received in advance (294) 
Decrease in staff housing loans 3,000 

Cash generated from operations 
Hong Kong profits tax paid 

Net cash from operating activities 

Investing activities 
Payment for purchase of fixed assets 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 
Payment for purchase of non-trading securities 
Payment for purchase of held-to-maturity debt securities 
Redemption/(placement) of certificates of deposit 
Proceeds from sale of non-trading securities 
Interest and dividends received 

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 

The notes on pages 73 to 82 form part of these financial statements. 

Notes to the financial statements 
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 

Significant accounting policies 

(a) Basis of preparation 

26,686 

_____illill 
_ _.?_����-� 

(784) 

(30,1 88) 
(2,790) 

5,000 
1 9,385 
3 473 

_j?,�-q�) 

20,591 

54,861 

75.452 

2003 
$'000 

1 9.422 

3,970 
(4,366) 

1 ,007 
(3,062) 
(5,875) 

1 1 ,096 
976 

1 ,861 
(1,077) 

1 ,534 

1 4,390 

___jf§§) 
___ 1_��!�� 

(62) 
8,390 

(13,540) 

(10,000) 
13,206 

� 
----�,Q?_� 

16,179 

38,682 

54,861 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance all applicable Hong 
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which includes all applicable Statements of 
Standard Accounting Practice and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants and accounting principles generally accepted in 
Hong Kong. The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost 
convention, modified by the revaluation of non-trading securities as explained in 
note 1 (h) to the financial statements. 

(b) Recently issued accounting standards 
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has issued a number of 
new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong 
Accounting Standards ('new HKFRSs') which are effective tor accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2005. 
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The group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in the financial statements for 
the year ended 31 December 2004. 
The group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these new 
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new HKFRSs would 
have a significant impact on the results of its operations and financial position. 

(c) Subsidiary 
A subsidiary, in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordmance, is a 
company in which the Chamber, directly or indirectly. holds more than half of the 
issued share capital, or controls more than half the voting power, or controls the 
composition of the board of directors. 
An 1nvestment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial 
statements and intra-group balances and transactions are eliminated in full in 
preparing the consolidated financial statements. 
In the Chamber's balance sheet, investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less 
any impairment losses (see note 1 (g)). 

(d) Income recognition 
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Chamber and the 
income and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is recognised in 
the income and expenditure statement as follows: 
(i) Members' subscriptions 

Members' subscriptions are recognised on an accrual basis. 
(ii) Fees and commission income 

Fees and commission income are recognised as income when the services are 
rendered. 

(111) Interest income 

Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a time-apportioned basis by 
reference to the principal outstanding and the rate applicable. 

(iv) Dividends 

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder's 
right to receive payment is established. 
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the share pnce of 
the investment goes ex-dividend. 

(v) Rental income from operating leases 

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in the income 
and expenditure statement in equal instalments over the accounting period 
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more 
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. 
Lease incentives granted are recognised in the income and expenditure 
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. 

(e) Fixed assets and depreciation 
(i) Leasehold investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1 (g)). Other fixed 
assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Leasehold land is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the rema1ning periods 
of the respective leases. 
Buildings are depreciated on a straight-line bas1s over a period of forty years 
from the date of acquisition. 
Computer system is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated 
economic life of the system of three years starting from the time the economic 
benefits begin to accrue. 
Other fixed assets are depreciated at the following annual rates on a straight­
line bas1s: 
Furniture, fittings and office equipment 10% to 20% 
Motor vehicle 20% 

(iij Subsequent expenditure relating to a fixed asset that has already been 
recognised is added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable 
that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of 
performance of the existing asset, will flow to the Chamber. All other subsequent 
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. 

(iii) Surpluses or deficits arising from the retirement or disposal of a fixed asset are 
determined as the difference between the estimated net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income and 
expenditure statement on the date of retirement or disposal. 
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(f) Leased assets 
Leases of assets under which the lessor has not transferred all the risks and benefits 
of ownership are classified as operating leases. 
(/) Assets held for use in operating lease 

Where the Chamber leases out assets under operating leases, the assets are 
included in the balance sheet according to their nature and, where applicable, 
are depreciated in accordance with the Chamber's depreciation policies, as set 
out in note 1 (e). Income arising from operating leases is recognised in accordance 
with the Chamber's income recognition policies, as set out in note 1 (d). 

(iQ Operating lease charges 
Where the Chamber has the use of assets under operating leases, payments 
made under the leases are charged to the income and expenditure statement 
in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, 
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits 
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised 
1n the income and expenditure statement as an integral part of the aggregate 
net lease payments made. 

(g) Impairment of assets 
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each balance sheet 
date to identify indications that the following assets may be impaired or an 
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased: 
- investment properties; and 
- investment in a subsidiary. 
If any such indication exists, the asset 's recoverable amount is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds 
its recoverable amount. 
(i) Calculation of recoverable amount 

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net selling price and 
value in use. In assessing value in use. the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments o1 time value of money and the risks specific to 
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent 
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the 
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a 
cash-generating unit). 

(ii) Reversals of impairment losses 

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount. 
A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset's carrying amount that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior 
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the income and 
expenditure statement in the year in which the reversals are recognised. 

(h) Non-trading investments and held-to-maturity debt securities 
(i) Investments which are held for non-trading purposes are stated at fair value at 

the balance sheet date. Changes in the fair value of individual securities are 
credited or debited to the investment revaluation reserve until the security is 
sold, collected, or otherwise disposed of, or until there is objective evidence 
that the security is impaired, at which time the relevant cumulative surplus or 
deficit is transferred from the investment revaluation reserve to the income and 
expenditure statement. 
Transfers from the investment revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure 
statement as a result of impairments are reversed when the circumstances and 
events leading to the impairment cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence 
that the new circumstances and events will persist for the foreseeable future. 
Surpluses or deficits on disposal of non-trading securities are accounted for in 
the income and expenditure statement as they arise. The surplus or deficit 
includes any amount previously held in the investment revaluation reserve in 
respect of that security. 

(ii) Dated debt securities that the group has the ability and intention to hold to 
maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities 
are stated in the balance sheet at amortised cost less any provisions for 
diminution in value. Provisions are made when carrying amounts are not 
expected to be fully recovered and are recognised as an expense in the income 
and expenditure statement, such provisions being determined for each 
investment individually. 
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Income tax 
(i) Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax 

assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are recognised in the income and expenditure account except to the 
extent that they relate to items recognised directly in equity, in which case they 
are recognised in equity. 

(11) Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, 
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, 
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 

(iii) Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary 
differences respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. 
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits. 
All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is 
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset 
can be utilised, are recognised. 
The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected 
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and 
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet 
date.. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. 
The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet 
date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any 
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available. 

(iv) Current tax balances a0d deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are 
presented separately from each other and are not offset. 

Provisions and contingent liabilities 
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the 
Chamber or the group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. 
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or 
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent 
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible 
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non­
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities 
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. 

Translation of foreign currencies 
Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars 
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the 
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are 
dealt with in the income and expenditure statement. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with 
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. 

Employee benefits 
(i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost to the Chamber of 

non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associa1ed services 
are rendered by employees of the Chamber. 

(ii) Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the Hong Kong 
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense 
in the income and expenditure statement as incurred. 

Related parties 
For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to 
the Chamber if the Chamber has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or 
exercise significant influence over the party in making frnancial and operating decisions, 
or vice versa, or where the Chamber and the party are subject to common control or 
common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities. 
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2 !�DEW� 2 Fixed assets 
131lH!!1f �iillllt ';i\A ·�Ui& ,UI li!!lo l�wt 

�� 17!� IW-1}��® �;Jt 
(a) I*� (a) Consolidated Leasehold Furniture, 

properties Leasehold fittings 
held for investment and office Motor Computer 

own use properties equipment vehicle system Total 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Ji;iffi : Cost: 
2004 1!' 1  }1 1  B At 1 January 2004 84,931 65,083 16,076 503 12,214 1 78,807 
jjj:\fl Additions _ill � _____BM 
2004 1!' 12 .Fl 31 B At 31 December 2004 -������ _?_�cg?_� __ 1_����-� 503 __ 1_���?-� 179,591 

lUHiili :  Accumulated depreciation: 
2004 11' 1 .Fl 1  B At 1 January 2004 13,550 45,564 13,540 3 1 1  1 1 ,7 14 84,679 
!j:pglfijj Charge for the year ___Llli � ____§]]_ _jQ! � 3.782 

20041!' 12 }'j 31 13 At 31 December 2004 __ 1_��g?_� 46,687 14,21 7 412 12 , 1 16 88.461 

liUi�m: : Net book value: 
2004 1!' 1 2 J'l 31 13  At 31 December 2004 69,902 1 8,396 2,274 91 467 91 . 1 30 

2003 1!' 12 ftl 31 B At 31 December 2003 71 ,381 19,519 2,536 192 500 94,128 
= 

(b) !!ifi* (b) The Chamber 

l!;iffi : Cost: 
2004 1f 1 fl 1 13 At 1 January 2004 84,931 65,083 15,716 503 12,214 1 78,447 
;f.,fi Additions 4 15  355 770 

2004 lf: 12 ftl 31 13  At 31 December 2004 84,931 65,083 16 , 131 503 __ 1_?��?-� �_7_�!?]_� 

W.it!Jifl : Accumulated depreciation: 

2004 lf: 1 ftl 1 13  At 1 January 2004 13,550 45,564 13,196 3 1 1  1 1 ,714 84,335 
lfpg!Jifi Charge for the year 1,479 1 , 1 23 662 101 399 3,764 

2004 1¥ 12 ,El 31 13 At 31 December 2004 15,029 _::���?-� _ _  

1_�!�?-� 412 12 , 1 13 -��!g�-� 

JI!Hti�m : Net book value: 
2004 1!' 1 2  .Fl 31 13 At 31 December 2004 69,902 18,396 2,273 91 456 91 , 1 1 8  

2003 lf: 1 2  }'j 31 13 At 31 December 2003 71,381 19 ,519 2,520 192 500 94, 1 1 2  

(c) E!llll1HltJ�&Jl!:ittJ�J>J1Ui! · li (c) The leasehold properties held for own use and investment properties are situated 
PJ:!Uilfllli'lli>t!Hr in Hong Kong and held under long leases. 

(d) ��w���.m�li�mmmrr�� · (d) The Chamber leases out investment properties under operating leases. The leases 
.m��m�=1¥ · ��m�m�� · m  typically run for an initial period of three years, with an option to renew the lease 
1Jl!!jll>J::f�ti5et:fffllii " after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes 

contingent rentals. 
m�::rm•��l&.mamm*•$� Total future lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are 
lllii�ro1Ptff : as follows: fi'f.ft/}..'!lfljfi 

Consolidated and the Chamber 
2004 2003 

$'000 $'000 
-1j':pq)l!jjjij Within 1 year 535 1 ,464 
-�1k1£ln1fP>JWl� After 1 year but within 5 years __.§Z§ � 

1 ,2 1 1  1 ,627 
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3 

ll<lll\illJt1!'{f.J�FJ:iPJa�S 
foft.Qi}llj{f,J!J-::7 

�ftiW{f.Jmai}llJ��•�tte��{f.J 

>!i!li�lli�Mi!R1}i>J · 'I'P<l.±'il'!�tll�llt' 
�i!limBa · •••••��'�'��•{f.J 

)Z�if; · 7j��;ti1}o)ilf'\'ffi�ll>'�*:f:i 

itaJl i: 1!11 {f.JJIHJcz I& -

l�L'l\!flaHi{f.Jl'l Y,liJJll\"fj!( ,!>\fil�lj}ll] (1:7 
�liJJ) Jail) 

illfil 

J:illllU! 

- ·� 
- ��r 

:ul:m 
ltillltii!Ull!IiJtff:{f.J�li'J<JlYiftUJHlM 

li.Ullilllltll: 
�2004 lf 12 Jl 31 ElWI!tJI!i!f;�fn.o:rtJ{�:< 
�PD"F 

#i: f!J.\J, 
3,000,000 7( 2005 lf 7 Jl 31 El iD 

�.\?. ' :11:1ttlf.@, 5% 

W���Hllk'iir..i · l!Ht!'X1ilittem� · £· 
�j{�.il!lt;&:a;� . �J.t<l'r.tff.l'i! . 
�2003!f12J'l31 El · �fiiJJiiltM§!iS 

-J!WI!tlflll'l'�n.ooo.ooo 7( · lf.\? s% • 

8 li:i!i!!!IIAA? 
mMMstt•5�{f.JmaMff · �lYI� 

a - �awmm*{f.J�JtRs�•�• 

,(!, ' l'ilEilil!ilft¥!1'iJJ'l1 ' lif;Jj'{ji[J'f . 

tU� lift� 
:'!Jti!�ll\te. 

3 Interest in a subsidiary 

Unlisted shares, at cost 
Amount due from subsidiary 

Less: Provision 

2004 
$'000 

1 0  

� 
5,434 

(3,982) 
1,452 

� tU 

The Chamber 

2003 
$'000 

1 0  
7,083 
7,093 

(3,982) 
3 1 1 1  

The wholly owned subsidiary is Chamber Services Limited ('CSL'), incorporated in 
Hong Kong, whose principal activity during the year was the provision of business 
related services. The Chamber has issued a lelter of support which was in force 
during the year for an unspecified amount to provide financial assistance as is 
necessary to maintain CSL as a going concern. 

4 Unlisted non-trading investments if. if !})1.i'Jilt 
Consolidated and the Chamber 

Shares in Tradelink Electronic Commerce 
Limited ('Tradelink'), at cost 

2004 2003 
$'000 $'000 

5 Non-trading securities managed by investment manager t'f.ft J}i1.illift 

At market value 
Listed investments 
- Hong Kong 
- Overseas 

Unlisted investments 

Consolidated and the Chamber 

2004 2003 
$'000 $'000 

13,565 
20,1 80 
33,745 
40,098 
73,843 

1 0,499 
1 5,579 
26,078 
30,420 
56,498 

Unlisted investments compnse bonds and other marketable instruments. 

6 Held-to-maturity debt securities 

Listed in Hong Kong 
Held-to-maturity debt securities, at amortised cost 

Market value 

7 Staff housing loans 

!$f;f}�FJjff 

Consolidated and the Chamber 

2004 2003 
$'000 $'000 

The term of the secured housing loan as at 31 December 2004 is as follows: 
Principal Interest 
$3,000,000 interest-free until 31 July 2005 and at 5% per annum thereafter 

The housing loan is repayable upon the staff member's resignation or retirement or 
on the sale of the property, whichever occurs earlier. 
As at 31 December 2003, staff housing loans also included a secured amount of 
$3,000,000 which bore interest at 5% per annum. 

8 Accounts with investment manager 
These comprise cash balances in interest -bearing current accounts and fixed 
deposits together with accrued interest and dividend receivable on marketable 
securities, managed by the investment manager as follows; f.T:f!J}�FJjt/ 

Current accounts 
Accrued dividend receivable 

Consolidated and the Chamber 

2004 2003 
$'000 $'000 
1 ,687 2,289 

__ 1_8 __ 1_3 

1.705 2,302 
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't:P!Jl.f'!lll- � i!!�lJ1lfF!Iftflii 
*��t'1Jjj 

;'!lilWit 
m,;&�atJ;\I!;&�lm 

�l/1.-'l::lHrf�Jb{ 1 fl 1 f.l rf.Jtililf5!Tjj/6i,t 

·� � W¥.\\ 11\ � 1ft 1i'i ;f i! �� fJLJHlJ J:J. 
17.5% !l!if' (20o3 � .  17.5%) ;tw 
&,JHI]!J!l!l�l/;i 

(b) � l!!l li1 11HJI.JU'UHJt!Ji 1<: tli & * tt 
JU� :  

J;( 17 5%f!t4\lli?.rf.Jl!tifl.lR���17: 

'f'iiJl!l�Hl'lllrt-JgttJUli!lt 
1Fllf5!l&A.at);f t'tl6!r. 
E'.f..lFilt UR«i l!lft.lot !!1M.'l\ 

f!l!J1:f:l£iliia'Jl�li11J:ljj�� 

't!Fiii & i!!'f!JHH!!Iftlffl 
E'.Nill�f'H;}f!t 

(b) BAMI'Il.HJ!lll�� : 

l'lfil&'!i(ljtl/ 

•ew•nm��&••��•a'J•� 

.&�P<l�lb : 

llf"FJIJJ!l. �I itrf.JJH!ilftlll : 
2003 lf 1 fj 1 13 
tt�Al&Y:!aP::&A.� 
2003� 12 fl 31 13 

2004 !!' 1 J'l 1 13  

:(ft).Jill('(Y:l.!>:!f�l!lf4' 

2004 � 1 2 !'l 31 13  

9 Certificates of deposit 

Non-trading and unlisted, at fair value 

P>ts&.>!iliift 
Consolidated and the Chamber 

2004 2003 
$'000 $'000 

_ _§,_000 1 0,000 

10 Income tax in  the consolidated income and expenditure statement 

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income and expenditure statement represents: 

Current tax - provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax 
Tax for the year 

Deferred tax 
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 
Effect of increase in tax rate on deferred tax 

balances at 1 January 

2004 2003 
$'000 $'000 

171  249 

38 37 
(88) 

38 
_____ _t�:l 

209 198 

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2003: 17 .5%) of 
the estimated assessable profits for the year. 

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting surplus at applicable tax rates: 
• 

2004 2003 
$'000 $'000 

Surplus before tax 1 1,230 1 9,422 

Notional tax on surplus before tax, calculated at 17 .5% 
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 

1 ,966 
9,149 

(1 0,905) 
(1) 

3,399 
9,228 

(12,293) 
(48) 
(88) 

Tax effect of non-taxable income 
Tax effect of tax losses utilised 
Effect on opening deferred tax balances resulting 

from an increase in tax rate during the year 
Actual tax expense 

1 1  Income tax i n  the balance sheet 

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents: 

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year 
Provisional Profits Tax paid 

(b) Deferred tax assets recognised: 
Consolidated and the Chamber 

>t"<§'!!�il!it 
Consolidated and the Chamber 

2004 2003 
$'000 $'000 

17 1  249 
(249) (307) 
(78) (58) 

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated balance 
sheet and the movements during the year are as follows: 11�1!1111Hiii�!li!iflll 

Deferred tax arising from: 
At 1 January 2003 

Depreciation allowances 

less than related depreciation 

$'000 
940 

Credited to consolidated income and expenditure statement 
At 31 December 2003 

51 
991 

At 1 January 2004 
Charged to consolidated income and expenditure statement 

At 31 December 2004 

991 
(38) 
953 

fJ:i'!&.��i'Jjft 
Consolidated and the Chamber 

2004 2003 
$'000 $'000 

Net deferred tax assets recognised on the balance sheet 953 991 
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(c) *AUl!�lJ'itt.il (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised 
ll;l!Jl*i!!i 2 , 3 5 3 ,000 7t (2003 !¥ The group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of $2,353,000 
2,356,0007t) !J!Jflfililil'ii.i:1:��l!fj! 
lll"i:l?£Ai::" · ltiillll.ll.iitl!ffl!lWJ · 

(2003: $2,356,000). The tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation. 
:firl!l 

!Jilll��JI.\j*iaml ' 

12  iimJt 1 2  Fees 

iiiDf!Jlilil.�!!tl!WI!l Certificate and GSP fees 
IID�l'f��!f.l Reimbursement to Hong Kong Government 

�T�U���m�l!l · ����� EDI fees, including trade declaration and 
r,r, · li?IS���l'H±lD;\1 textile quota licence fees 

IIDII-'J(£� Reimbursement to Tradelink 
@]�ifi!Jll(fli! Reimbursement to Hong Kong Government 

�fiE Others 

13 fll.\'Ht/N.Q. 13 Interest and dividends 

JEWj{EJ:lil.i,Hl Jl''iJ:�IJ 9. Interest on time deposits and staff loans 
'f1J.2.1il.llU!. Interest and dividends 
-J:iliNi.'i - listed investments 
- ;Hili · ��x�lHi - unlisted non-trading investments 
- �nJ!1!lJ:iliti1mi.i!fi - held-to-maturity listed debt securities 

14 ltili.&ll!l 1 4  Publications and promotion 

4i<A Income from 
- tllri - publications 
- �lj'j�f!l - sundry services 
-ffll'.llt - seminars 

.Ri:ll Expenditure on 
- mr� - publications 
- fl£1il.f.Sibllt� - trade and programme promotion 
- .IJ'<li lil.i:Jtlmif - advertising and public relations 
- ffli')ft - seminars 

�'ill& A Net income 

15 lit.fl 15 Staff 

�ii · l¥1-!�iflil.;:jl!ll; Salaries, bonus and allowances 
lliinm�tmfiJ�fJlil.�'-'�Jtti:m£�tfJ Contribution to staff retirement benefit scheme and 

�� mandatory provident fund scheme 
��IT!ifllliilil.ti��RI!l Staff quarters rental and related expenses 
llilli:!Rill Medical expenses 
JiU�IJ!f*;:j!Jlli Passage and leave allowances 
Jilt•llil.tll� Training and recruiting 
�Jjl Sundries 
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2004 2003 
$'000 $'000 

28,839 26,695 
(2) 

--�-�!��� --��!?9_� 
53,102 55.487 

(37,634} (38,961) 
(1 , 1 76) (1 ,249) 

___ 

1_�!?�� 15,277 
44 

- - - - - - -5-:3 
43,1 75 42,023 

2004 2003 
$'000 $'000 

231 576 

397 312 
2,797 2,174 

49 
3 474 3,062 

2004 2003 
$'000 $'000 

1 , 1 1 4  1 ,062 
8,873 10,550 
2,366 2,529 

_ _ _  

1
_?!�?-� 14:141 

1 ,077 1 ,278 
6,562 7,456 

99 161 
376 613 

- - - -�!!_1_� ----�!��� 
4,239 4,633 

2004 2003 
$'000 $'000 

36,792 36,005 
3,320 3,502 

1 ,232 1 ,305 
520 500 
28 57 

342 1 12 
100 44 

42,334 41,525 



;!!1-i&{.t.!; 
lll:Jt 
lll:l3� 
Efllt!J&:JZJ( 
'$� 
l*:ii ' ���.&il'l t( 

·;!!� 

<'tilt!.)(iWJJ} 

j'{lli!lll:st 

!!Jjjr.l)� 

17 ti�f9iJt 

��!:� 
ol!Ji� 
Jti.f&W.!t.� 
!i!�r.ll� 
ll!:&:�ifl&J4 
�l'fl� 

�iEi'U'HfrN (�1U 2(a)) 

tllW�iEnitMi1U3h1 

f:1£!1llUH t 
Jjj!Hfl!IJ 
liU,t 

2004 'fll\J 1 .ooo.ooo itlfW: · })�!&� 
il!tH:f:1}'f'Fifi52;fll��JlH!ll� • 

20 �lll1ii'.'*.61illlf!!!HlU 
€��u 1 1  .oH.ooo 1t (2oo3 "' 

18,956,0007t) ll\Jt!l.lti��2.�li'.i!!J1\t 

ll\Jll:H�fab .A.!!:> • 

1 .F! H l  

!lftlili!iii'iil� 

12 .F! 31 s 

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

Office 
2004 2003 

$'000 $'000 
Rent and rates 2,563 2,870 
Light and power 310 308 
Telephone 202 176 
Printing and stationery g75 1,058 
Postage 429 501 
Maintenance, repairs and cleaning 334 409 
Books and newspapers 50 55 
Local travelling 76 80 
Motor car expenses 84 55 
Sundry expenses 283 301 

5,306 5,81 3  

Services 
2004 2003 

$'000 $'000 
Audit fees 320 226 
Treasurers' fees 460 460 
Legal and professional fees 43 173 
Computing fees 765 944 
Investment manager's fees 316 241 
Insurance 506 527 

2.410 2,571 

Depreciation and deficit on disposal of fixed assets 
2004 2003 

$'000 $'000 
Depreciation on fixed assets (note 2(a)) 3,782 3,970 
Deficit on disposal of fixed assets 7 

3,782 3,977 

Subscriptions and donations 
2004 2003 

$'000 $'000 
Trade organisations' subscriptions 1 1 3  82 
Project sponsorship 172 
Donations 1 ,000 52 

1 1 1 3  306 

The donation of $1 ,000,000 in 2004 was to the Hong Kong Red Cross for the 
tsunami appeal. 

20 Surplus from ordinary activities after taxation 
The surplus from ordinary activities after taxation includes a surplus of $11 ,017,000 
(2003: $18,956,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Chamber. 

21 I nvestment revaluation reserve 

At 1 January 
Revaluation surplus 

At 3 1  December 

l<Us &. t!'tlifl 

Consolidated and the Chamber 

2004 2003 

$'000 $'000 
6,648 (3,871) 
5,627 10,519 
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22 Commitments 
At 31 December 2004, the total future minimum lease payments under non­
cancellable operating leases in respect of properties are payable as follows: 

t;:f!;f}�f$#( 

Within 1 year 
After 1 year but within 5 years 

Consolidated and the Chamber 

2004 2003 
$'000 $'000 
1 .317 1 ,018 

1 1 8  520 
1 4:l5 1,538 

The Chamber leases a number of properties under operating leases. The leases 
typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with an option to renew the 
lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. 

23 Material related party transactions 
During 2001 , the Chamber renewed a lease agreement for one of its mvestment 
properties with an association in which it has the only voting right at the association's 
general meetings. The lease term was for three years from 1 September 2001 to 
30 August 2004 at an agreed monthly rental of $1 29,375. The lease was not renewed. 
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